

# THE CITY RECORD

2590

Official Journal of The City of New York

Dogian and Construction



Price: \$4.00

**VOLUME CXLII NUMBER 179** 

#### WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2015

# THE CITY RECORD

BILL DE BLASIO Mayor

#### STACEY CUMBERBATCH

Commissioner, Department of Citywide Administrative Services

#### ELI BLACHMAN

Editor, The City Record

Published Monday through Friday except legal holidays by the New York City Department of Citywide Administrative Services under Authority of Section 1066 of the New York City Charter.

Subscription \$500 a year, \$4.00 daily (\$5.00 by mail). Periodicals Postage Paid at New York, N.Y. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE CITY RECORD, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor. New York, N.Y. 10007-1602

Editorial Office/Subscription Changes: The City Record, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10007-1602 (212) 386-0055

Visit The New City Record Online (CROL) at www.nyc.gov/cityrecord for a searchable database of all notices published in the City Record.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETING	S£
Borough President - Manhattan 35	73
Borough President - Queens	73
City Council	73
City Planning Commission	75
Community Boards	75
Consumer Affairs	76
Employees' Retirement System 35	76
Housing Authority	76
Landmarks Preservation Commission 35	77
Records and Information Services 35	78
Transportation	78
PROPERTY DISPOSITION	
Citywide Administrative Services 35	79
Office of Citywide Procurement 35	79
Police	79
PROCUREMENT	
Citywide Administrative Services 35	80

Design and Constituction	ou
Contracts	80
Environmental Protection	81
Wastewater Treatment	81
Fire Department	81
Fiscal Services	81
Health and Hospitals Corporation 35	81
Housing Preservation and Development . $35$	81
Legal	81
Human Resources Administration 35	81
Agency Chief Contracting Officer 35	81
Parks and Recreation	81
Revenue	82
Revenue and Concessions 35	82
AGENCY PUBLIC HEARINGS	
${\bf Administration\ for\ Children's\ Services.\ .\ 35}$	82
AGENCY RULES	
Health and Mental Hygiene 35	83
SPECIAL MATERIALS	
Consumer Affairs	87
Housing Preservation and Development 35	87
Mayor's Fund to Advance New York City $35$	88
Changes in Personnel	88

## PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS

Office of Citywide Procurement . . . . . . 3580

See Also: Procurement; Agency Rules

#### **BOROUGH PRESIDENT - MANHATTAN**

#### ■ MEETING

The Manhattan Borough Board will meet Thursday, September 17, 2015, at 8:30 A.M., in the Office of Manhattan Borough President, 1 Centre Street, 19th Floor South, New York, N.Y.

The meeting will include a hearing and a vote on a resolution approving a lease from the City of New York to the New York City Land Development Corporation ("NYCLDC") and an assignment of lease to Aaron Diamond AIDS Research Center, for space located at 455 First Avenue, 6th and 7th Floors, New York, NY 10016, Block 932, Part of Lot 17, pursuant to New York City Charter Section 384(b)(4).

s10-16

#### **BOROUGH PRESIDENT - QUEENS**

#### ■ MEETING

The Queens Borough Board will meet Wednesday, September 16, 2015 at 5:30 P.M. in the Queens Borough President Conference Room, 120-55 Queens Boulevard,  $2^{nd}$  Floor, Kew Gardens, N.Y. 11424.

s10-16

#### CITY COUNCIL

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

**NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that the Council has scheduled the following public hearings on the matters indicated below:

The Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises will hold a public hearing in the Council Committee Room, 250 Broadway, 16th Floor, New York City, NY 10007, commencing at 9:30 A.M. on Monday, September 21, 2015.

The Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime Uses will hold a public hearing on the following matters in the Council Committee Room, 250 Broadway, 16th Floor, New York City, NY 10007, commencing at 11:00 A.M. on Monday, September 21, 2015:

# RIVERSIDE-WEST END HISTORIC DISTRICT EXTENSION II MANHATTAN CB - 07 20155772 HKM (N 150458 HKM)

The proposed designation by the Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the landmark designation of the Riverside-West End Historic District Extension II [Designation List No. 483/LP-2464].

# RIVERSIDE-WEST END HISTORIC DISTRICT EXTENSION II BOUNDARIES:

**SECTION 1** of the proposed Riverside-West End Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southeast corner of Riverside Drive and West 95th Street extending northerly along the eastern curbline of Riverside Drive to a point on a line extending westerly from the northern property line of 230 Riverside Drive (aka 337 West 95th Street), easterly along said line and the northern property line of 230 Riverside Drive (aka 337 West 95th Street); southerly along the eastern property line of 230 Riverside Drive (aka 337 West 95th Street) to the northern curbline of West 95th Street; easterly along the northern curbline of West 95th Street to a point on a line extending southerly from the western property line of 317 West 95th Street (aka 317-319 West 95th Street); northerly along said line and the western property line of 317 West 95th Street (aka 317-319 West 95th Street); easterly along the northern property lines of 317 West 95th Street (aka 317-319 West 95th Street) and 311 West 95th Street (aka 311-315 West 95th Street) to a point on the western property line of 735 West End Avenue (aka 721-735 West End Avenue; 301-309 West 95th Street; 300-308 West 96th Street), northerly along part of the western property line of 735 West End Avenue (aka 721-735 West End Avenue; 301-309 West 95th Street; 300-308 West 96th Street) to the southern curb line of West 96th Street, easterly along the southern curb line of West 96th Street to a point on a line extending southerly from the western property line of 301 West 96th Street (aka 737-739 West End Avenue), northerly along said line and the western property lines of 301 West 96th Street (aka 737-739 West End Avenue), 741 West End Avenue (aka 741-745 West End Avenue) and part of the western property line of 749 West End Avenue (aka 747-751 West End Avenue), westerly along the southern property lines of 308 West 97th Street (aka 306-308 West 97th Street) and 310 West 97th Street (aka 310-312 West 97th Street), northerly along part of the western property line of 310 West 97th Street (aka 310-312 West 97th Street), westerly, southerly, westerly, northerly, and westerly along the southern property lines of 316 West 97th Street and 244 Riverside Drive (aka 318-324 West 97th Street) to point of intersection with the eastern property line of 243 Riverside Drive (aka 240-243 Riverside Drive), southerly along the eastern property line of 243 Riverside Drive (aka 240-243 Riverside Drive) to the parthern careful and the control of the parthern and the control of the parthern careful and the control of the control of the parthern careful and the control of the the northern curbline of West 96th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 96th Street, northerly along the eastern curbline of Riverside Drive to a point on a line in the middle of West 105th Street, easterly along said line to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 325 Riverside Drive (aka 325-327 Riverside Drive; 322-330 West 105th Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 325 Riverside Drive (aka 325-327 Riverside Drive; 322-330 West 105th Street) and part of the eastern property line of 320 Riverside Drive (aka 320-323 Riverside Drive; 323-325 West 104th Street), easterly along part of the northern property line of 320 Riverside Drive (aka 320-323 Riverside Drive; 323-325 West 104th Street), the northern property lines of 321 through 309 West 104th Street (aka 305-313 West 104th Street), and part of the northern property line of 905 West End Avenue (aka 901-905 West End Avenue; 301-303 West 104th Street), northerly along the western property line of 915 West End Avenue (aka 911-919 West End Avenue; 300 West 105th Street) and continuing to a point on a line in the middle of West 105th Street, easterly along said line to a point on a line extending southerly from the western property line of 925 West End Avenue (aka 921-927 West End Avenue; 297-299 West 105th Street), northerly along said line and the western property line of 925 West End Avenue (aka 921-927 West End Avenue; 297-299 West 105th Street), westerly along part of the southern property line of 929 West End Avenue (aka 929-931 West End Avenue) and the southern property lines of 302 through 320 West 106th Street, northerly along the western property line of 320 West 106th Street to a point on a line in the middle of West 106th Street, westerly along said line to a point on a line extending southerly from the eastern curbline of Riverside Drive, northerly along said line and the eastern curbline of Riverside Drive to a point on a line extending westerly from the northern property line of 360 Riverside Drive (aka 331-339 West 108th Street), easterly along said line and the northern property line of 360 Riverside Drive (aka 331-339 West 108th Street), northerly along part of the western property line of 329 West 108th Street (aka 327-329 West 108th Street), easterly along the northern property lines of 329 West 108th Street (aka 327-329

West 108th Street) through 317 West 108th Street, southerly along the eastern property lines of 317 West 108th Street through 303 West 107th Street and a line extending southerly to the southern curbline of West 107th Street, easterly along the southern curbline of West 107th Street, to the western curbline of West End Avenue; southerly along the western curbline of West End Avenue to the southwest corner of West 106th Street, easterly across West End Avenue and along the southern curbline of West 106th Street to the western curbline of Broadway; southerly along the western curbline of Broadway to the northern curbline of West 105th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 105th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 908 West End Avenue (aka 908-918 West End Avenue; 258-260 West 105th Street), southerly along said line and southerly, easterly, and southerly along part of the eastern property line of 908 West End Avenue (aka 908-918 West End Avenue; 258-260 West 105th Street), easterly along part of the northern property line of 900 West End Avenue (aka 900-906 West End Avenue; 251-259 West 104th Street) southerly along the eastern property line of 900 West End Avenue (aka 900-906 West End Avenue; 251-259 West 104th Street) and a line extending from the eastern property line of 900 West End Avenue (aka 900-906 West End Avenue; 251-259 West 104th Street) to the southern curb line of West 104th Street, easterly along the southern curb line of West 104th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 242 West 104th Street, southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 242 West 104th Street, westerly along part of the southern property line of 242 West 104th Street, southerly along the eastern property line of 239 West 103rd Street and a line extending from the eastern property line of 239 West 103rd Street to the northern curbline of West 103rd Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 103rd Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 242 West 103rd Street, southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 242 West 103rd Street, westerly along the southern property lines of 242 and 244 West 103rd Street (aka 244B West 103rd Street) and part of 250 West 103rd Street (aka 246-252 West 103rd Street), southerly along the eastern property line of 247 West 102nd Street and a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 247 West 102nd Street to the southern curbline of West 102nd Street, easterly along the southern curb line of West 102nd Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 244 West 102nd Street, southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 244 West 102nd Street; easterly along the northern property line of 241 West 101st Street (aka 241-243 West 101st Street), southerly along the eastern property line of 241 West 101st Street (aka 241-243 West 101st Street) to the northern curbline of West 101st Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 101st Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 232 West 101st Street, southerly along said line and the eastern property lines of 232 West 101st Street and 233 West 100th Street to the northern curbline of West 100th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 100th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from part of the eastern property line of 820 West End Avenue (aka 814-822 West End Avenue; 256-280 West 100th Street), southerly along said line and southerly, easterly, and southerly along the eastern property line of 820 West End Avenue (aka 814-822 West End Avenue; 256-280 West 100th Street), easterly along part of the northern property line of 808 West End Avenue (aka 806-810 West End Avenue; 259-269 West 99th Street) and the northern property lines of 257 through 249 West 99th Street southerly along the eastern property line of 249 West 99th Street and a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 249 West 99th Street to the southern curbline of West 99th Street, easterly along the southern curbline of West 99th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 250 West 99th Street (aka 248-256 West 99th Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property lines of 250 West 99th Street and 251 West 98th Street (aka 247-253 West 98th Street) to the northern curbline of West 98th Street; westerly along the northern curbline of West 98th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 254 West 98th Street (aka 254-256 West 98th Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 254 West 98th Street (aka 254-256 West 98th Street), easterly along part of the northern property line of 251 West 97th Street (aka 251-255 West 97th Street), southerly along the eastern property line of 251 West 97th Street (aka 251-255 West 97th Street) to the northern curbline of West 97th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 97th to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 258 West 97th Street (aka 256-258 West 97th Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 258 West 97th Street (aka 256-258 West 97th Street), westerly along part of the southern property line of 258 West 97th Street (aka 256-258 West 97th Street), southerly along the eastern property line of 740 West End Avenue (aka 740-750 West End Avenue; 251 West 96th Street) and a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 740 West End Avenue (aka 740-750 West End Avenue; 251 West 96th Street) to the northern curbline of West 96th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 96th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 736 West End Avenue (aka 736-738 West End Avenue; 272 West 96th Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property lines of 736 West End Avenue (aka 736-738 West End Avenue; 272 West 96th Street) and

732 West End Avenue (aka 732-734 West End Avenue), easterly along part of the northern property line of 720 West End Avenue (aka 720-730 West End Avenue; 257-273 West 95th Street), southerly along part of the eastern property line of 720 West End Avenue (aka 720-730 West End Avenue; 257-273 West 95th Street), easterly along part of the northern property line of 720 West End Avenue (aka 720-730 West End Avenue; 257-273 West 95th Street) and the northern property line of 255 West 95th Street (aka 253-255 West 95th Street), southerly along the eastern property line of 255 West 95th Street (aka 253-255 West 95th Street) and a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 255 West 95th Street (aka 253-255 West 95th Street) to the northern curbline of West 95th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 95th Street to a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of Pomander Walk, southerly along said line and the eastern property line of Pomander Walk to the northern curbline of West 94th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 94th Street to a point on a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 700 West End Avenue (aka 269 West 94th Street) to the southern curbline of West 94th Street, westerly along the southern curbline of West 94th Street to point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 306 West 94th Street, southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 306 West 94th Street,  $94 th \ Street,$  westerly along the southern property lines of 306 through 316 West 94th Street, northerly along the western property line of 316 West 94th Street to the northern curbline of West 94th Street, westerly along the northern curbline of West 94th Street to a point on a line extending southerly from the western property line of 321 West 94th Street (aka 321-325 West 94th Street), northerly along said line and the western property line of 321West 94th Street (aka 321-325 West 94th Street), westerly along part of the southern property line of 336 West 95th Street (aka 334-338 West 95th Street), northerly along the western property line of 336 West 95th Street (aka 334-338 West 95th Street) to the southern curbline of West 95th Street, and westerly along the southern curbline of West 95th Street to the point of beginning.

SECTION 2 of the proposed Riverside-West End Historic District Extension II consists of the property beginning on the southern curbline of West 92nd Street at a point on a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 288 West 92nd Street (aka 288-290 West 92nd Street), southerly along said line and the eastern property line of 288 West 92nd Street (aka 288-290 West 92nd Street), westerly along the southern property line of 288 West 92nd Street (aka 288-290 West 92nd Street), southerly along part of the eastern property line of 292 West 92nd Street, westerly along the southern property lines of 292 and 294 West 92nd Street, northerly along part of the western property line of 294 West 92nd Street, westerly along the southerly property line of 296 West 92nd Street, northerly along the western property line of 296 West 92nd Street to the northern curbline of West 92nd Street, easterly along the northern curbline of West 92nd Street to a point on a line extending southerly from the western property line of 255 West 92nd Street, northerly along said line and the western property line of 255 West 92nd Street, easterly along the northern property line of 255 West 92nd Street and southerly along the eastern property line of 255 West 92nd Street and a line extending from the eastern property line of 255 West 92nd Street to the southern curbline of West 92nd Street, easterly along the southern curbline of West 92nd Street to the point of beginning.

SECTION 3 of the proposed Riverside-West End Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning on the southern curbline of West 89th Street at a point on a line extending southerly from the eastern property line of 267 West 89th Street, northerly along said line and the eastern property line of 267 West 89th Street, westerly along the northern property line of 267 West 89th Street; southerly along the western property line of 267 West 89th Street and a line extending from the western property line of 267 West 89th Street to the southern curbline of West 89th Street, easterly along the southern curbline of West 89th Street to the point of beginning.

#### **CORBIN BUILDING**

#### MANHATTAN - CB 01

#### 20155773 HKM (N 150459 HKM)

The proposed designation by the Landmarks Preservation Commission [DL-483/LP-2569] pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the landmark designation of the Corbin Building located at 11 John Street (aka 1-13 John Street, 192 Broadway) (Tax Map Block 79, Lot 15 in part), as an historic landmark.

#### STONEWALL INN

#### MANHATTAN - CB 02

#### 20155774 HKM (N 150460 HKM)

The proposed designation by the Landmarks Preservation Commission [DL-483/LP-2574] pursuant to Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of the landmark designation of the Stonewall Inn located at 51-53 Christopher Street (Tax Map Block 610, Lot 1 in part), as an historic landmark.

The Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and Concessions will hold a public hearing in the Council Committee Room, 250

Broadway, 16th Floor, New York City, NY 10007, commencing at 1:00 P.M. on Monday, September 21, 2015.

s15-21

#### CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

**NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that resolutions have been adopted by the City Planning Commission, scheduling public hearings on the following matters to be held at 22 Reade Street, New York, NY, on Tuesday, September 22, 2015 at 10:00 A.M.

#### BOROUGH OF MANHATTAN No. 1

530 WEST 28<sup>TH</sup> STREET PARKING GARAGE

C 150309 ZSM IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by WC 28 Realty LLC pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 13-45 (Special Permits for additional parking spaces) and Section 13-451 (Additional parking spaces for residential growth) of the Zoning Resolution to allow an automated accessory off-street parking garage with a maximum capacity of 39 spaces on portions of the ground floor and sub-cellar of a proposed mixed-use building on property located at 530 West 28th Street (Block 699, Lot 49), in a C6-3 District, within the Special West Chelsea District.

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen in Room 3N, 22 Reade Street, New York, N.Y. 10007.

#### BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN Nos. 2 & 3 ONE CLINTON STREET No. 2

CD 2 C 150399 PPK

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services (DCAS), pursuant to Section 197-c of New York City Charter, for the disposition of one city-owned property located at 1 Clinton Street, (aka 280 Cadman Plaza West), Block 239, Lot 16, pursuant to zoning.

No. 3

C 150400 PQK

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Brooklyn Public Library and the Department of Citywide Administrative Services, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the acquisition of property located at 1 Clinton Street aka 280 Cadman Plaza West (Block 239, p/o Lot 16) for use as a branch library

YVETTE V. GRUEL, Calendar Officer City Planning Commission 22 Reade Street, Room 2E, New York, NY 10007 Telephone (212) 720-3370

s9-22

#### COMMUNITY BOARDS

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

**PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Board:

#### BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 10 - Monday, September 21, 2015 at 7:15 P.M., Shore Hill Community Room, 9000 Shore Road, NY

BSA# 189-15-BZ

Which seeks to allow a one-story addition to the rear of the existing four-story mixed commercial and residential building at 7311 Third Avenue contrary to maximum allowable floor area ratio (FAR) requirements.

Application Number 1079876-DCA for renewal of an unenclosed sidewalk café with 16 tables and 32 chairs at Paneantico Bakery Café, Inc., 9124 3rd Avenue.

s15-21

**PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN** that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Board:

#### BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 18 - Thursday, September 17, 2015 at 7:00 P.M., 1097 Bergen Avenue, Brooklyn, NY

#344-03-BZ IN THE MATTER OF B.S.A. Calendar #344-03-BZ - Premises affected - Nick's Lobster House, 277 Flatbush Avenue, Block #8591, Lots p/o 73-242 of the Zoning Resolution for an extension of term of a Special Permit for a term of five (5) years from July 12, 2015 for the legalization of the reconstruction and extension of an existing building operating as an eating and drinking establishment in a C3 Zoning District.

#636-54-BZII
IN THE MATTER OF B.S.A. Calendar #636-54-BZII - Premises affected - 9612 Seaview Avenue, N/W corner of Rockaway Parkway. Block #8328, Lot #30. An Application filed pursuant to Section 11-411 of the Zoning Resolution to request an extension of term of the previously granted Variance to permit the continued operation of an automotive service station within a C1-3/R5 Zoning District for a term of ten (10) years from 10/16/11. The Application also seeks a Waiver of the Board's Rules of Practice and Procedure to allow the filing of this application after the permitted filing period.

s11-17

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

#### BOROUGH OF QUEENS

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 12 - Monday, September 21, 2015 at 6:00 P.M., Astoria World Manor, 25-22 Astoria Boulevard, Astoria, NY

A public hearing regarding Fiscal Year 17 Capital and Expense Budget.

s15-21

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Board:

#### OROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 02 - Wednesday, September 16, 2015 at 6:00 P.M., NYU Polytechnic School of Engineering, Dibner Building, Room LC400, 5 Metrotech Center, Brooklyn, NY

BSA# 160-15-BZ

186 Montague Street, Brooklyn, NY
IN THE MATTER OF an application filed at the Board of Standards and Appeals on behalf of 92 Fitness Crew New York 3, LLC, doing business as Orangetheory Fitness, for a special permit to allow the operation of a physical culture establishment on the second floor of 186 Montague Street (Block 250, Lot 34), on the south side of Montague Street between Clinton and Court streets in the Borough of Brooklyn.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Board:

#### BOROUGH OF QUEENS

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 13 - Monday, September 21, 2015 at 7:00 P.M., Antun's, 96-43 Springfield Boulevard, Queens Village, NY

BSA# 30-15-BZ and 35-11-BZ

Applicant seeks to erect 4-story synagogue at 224-12, 224-16 and 224-20 Francis Lewis Boulevard, Cambria Heights, NY. Present homes will be demolished to erect proposed structure. Proposed structure will have a kitchen, housing and school.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Board:

#### **BOROUGH OF QUEENS**

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 07 - Monday, September 21, 2015 at 7:00 P.M., Union Plaza Care Center, 33-23 Union Street, Flushing, NY

Location: 10-24 154th Street, Whitestone, Queens Application for special permit to operate a physical culture & Life Fitness Health establishment in a two-story building in a R3 zoning district within a C2-2 commercial overlay.

s15-21

#### CONSUMER AFFAIRS

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

**NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN,** pursuant to law, that the New York City Department of Consumer Affairs will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, September 23, 2015, at 2:00 P.M., at 42 Broadway,

11th Floor, in the Borough of Manhattan, on the following petitions for sidewalk café revocable consent:

787 Eighth Ave Corp 787 8th Avenue in the Borough of Manhattan (To establish, maintain, and operate an unenclosed sidewalk café for a term of two years.)

• s16

#### ■ NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the New York City Department of Consumer Affairs will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, September 23, 2015, at 2:00 P.M., at 42 Broadway, 11th Floor, in the Borough of Manhattan, on the following petitions for sidewalk café revocable consent:

3 East 48th St 3 East 48th Street in the Borough of Manhattan (To establish, maintain, and operate a small unenclosed sidewalk café for a term of two years.)

• s16

#### EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

#### ■ MEETING

Please be advised that the next Investment Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the New York City Employees' Retirement System has been scheduled for Tuesday, September 22, 2015 at 9:30 A.M. to be held at the New York City Employees' Retirement System, 335 Adams Street,  $22^{\rm nd}$  Floor Boardroom, Brooklyn, NY 11201-3751.

s15-21

#### HOUSING AUTHORITY

#### ■ MEETING

The next Board Meeting of the New York City Housing Authority is scheduled for Wednesday, September 30, 2015 at 10:00 A.M. in the Board Room on the 12th Floor of 250 Broadway, New York, NY (unless otherwise noted). Copies of the calendar are available on NYCHA's website or can be picked up at the Office of the Corporate Secretary at 250 Broadway, 12th Floor, New York, NY, no earlier than 24 hours before the upcoming Board Meeting. Copies of the minutes are also available on NYCHA's website or can be picked up at the Office of the Corporate Secretary no earlier than 3:00 P.M. on the Thursday after the Board Meeting.

Any changes to the schedule will be posted here and on NYCHA's Website at http://www1.nyc.gov/site/nycha/about/board-calendar.page to the extent practicable at a reasonable time before the meeting.

The meeting is open to the public. Pre-registration at least 45 minutes before the scheduled Board Meeting is required by all speakers. Comments are limited to the items on the calendar. Speaking time will be limited to three minutes. The public comment period will conclude upon all speakers being heard or at the expiration of 30 minutes allotted by law for public comment, whichever occurs first.

Any person requiring a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the Board Meeting, should contact the Office of the Corporate Secretary at (212) 306-6088 no later than five business days before the Board Meeting.

For additional information, please visit NYCHA's Website or contact (212) 306-6088.

**◆** s16-30

#### LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION

#### ■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to the provisions of NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to the provisions of Title 25, Chapter 3 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York (Sections 25-303, 25-307, 25-308, 25-309, 25-313, 25-318, 25-320) on Tuesday, September 22, 2015, a public hearing will be held at 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor, Borough of Manhattan with respect to the following properties and then followed by a public meeting. The final order and estimated times for each application will be posted on the Landmarks Preservation Commission website the Friday before the hearing. Any

person requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the hearing or attend the meeting should contact the Landmarks Commission no later than five (5) business days before the hearing or meeting.

## 82-15 35th Avenue - Jackson Heights Historic District 150125 - Block 1443 - Lot 33 - Zoning: R7-1 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A neo-Georgian style apartment building, designed by Seelig & Finkelstein, and built in 1937. Application is to legalize construction of a barrier free access ramp and an entrance door, in non-compliance with Certificate of appropriateness 10-1258.

## 122 Pierrepont Street - Brooklyn Heights Historic District 174061 - Block 243 - Lot 44 - Zoning: R7-1 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

An Anglo-Italianate style rowhouse built in 1860. Application is to install a barrier-free access lift.

## 129 Pierrepont Street - Brooklyn Heights Historic District 174063 - Block 238 - Lot 1 - Zoning: C6-4 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A clubhouse building designed by Frank Freeman and built in 1906. Application is to alter the facades and areaway, replace storefront infill, and install cooling towers at the roof.

#### 161 State Street - Brooklyn Heights Historic District 172220 - Block 270 -Lot 10 - Zoning: R6 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Greek Revival style brick house built in 1841. Application is to demolish the existing rear yard addition, and construct a new rear vard addition.

# 848 Carroll Street - Park Slope Historic District 167980 - Block 1072 - Lot 14 - Zoning: R7B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A rowhouse designed by William B. Greenman and built in 1905. Application is to replace windows and alter the rear façade.

# **828 Greene Avenue - Individual Landmark 174755** - Block 1620 - Lot 25 - **Zoning:** R6B **CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS**

A Queen Anne/Romanesque Revival style church and church house, designed by Lansing C. Holden and built in 1887-92. Application is to install a ramp and construct an elevator shaft.

# 1375 Dean Street - Crown Heights North Historic District 158112 - Block 1209 - Lot 62 - Zoning: R6 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A transitional Greek Revival/Italianate style freestanding house built c. 1855-69. Application is to construct rooftop, side yard, and rear yard additions, alter the front garden and paving, and excavate the rear yard.

### 906 Prospect Place - Crown Heights North Historic District II 173769 - Block 12 - Lot 17 - Zoning: R6 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

An altered garage designed by James O. Carpenter and built c. 1897. Application is to demolish the existing building and construct a new building.

#### 211 Fenimore Street - Prospect Lefferts Gardens Historic District

174184 - Block 5038 - Lot 76 - Zoning: R2 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Colonial Revival style house built in 1906 by Axel Hedman. Application is to alter the façade and reconstruct the garage.

# 130 Beekman Street, aka 2227-231 Water Street - South Street

Seaport Historic District 174913 - Block 97 - Lot 7502 - Zoning: C6-2A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A complex of three buildings built in 1798, 1801, and 1827. Application is to replace the entry door and install a canopy

# 115 South Street - South Street Seaport Historic District 161442 - Block 97 -Lot 2 Zoning: - C6-2A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Greek Revival style building built in 1840 and altered in the 1880s. Application is to construct rooftop additions and install a fire escape at the rear façade.

# 60 Hudson Street - Interior Landmark 173138 - Block 144 - Lot 40 - Zoning: C6-2A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Dutch and German Expressionist/Art Deco style communications building designed by Voorhees, Gmelin and Walker and built 1928-1930. Application is to amend Certificate of Appropriateness 06-5630 governing the future installation of mechanical equipment and louvers, and window replacement.

# 6 Varick Street - Tribeca West Historic District 174189 - Block 189 - Lot 7501 - Zoning: C6-2A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS A neo-Grec/Queen Anne style warehouse built in 1881-1882 and altered in 1914, 1923, and 1934. Application is to alter storefronts,

entry door and windows, install loading platform and ramps, and install a canopy.

# 13 Worth Street - Tribeca West Historic District 173951 - Block 179 - Lot 6 - Zoning: C6-2A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A utilitarian style store and loft building designed by William Field & Son and built in 1873, and altered in 1878-79. Application is to construct a rooftop addition.

# 287 Broadway - Individual Landmark 166612 - Block 149 - Lot 29 - Zoning: C6-4A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

An Italianate and French Second Empire style building designed by John B. Snook and built in 1871-72. Application is to alter the facades, install new storefronts and construct rooftop bulkheads.

# 355 West Broadway - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic District 170719 - Block 475 - Lot 9 - Zoning: M1-5A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A loft building built c. 1880 and altered in 1958. Application is to construct rooftop and rear yard additions.

# 398 West Broadway - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic District Extension 175090 - Block 488 - Lot 23 - Zoning: M1-5A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A dwelling built in c. 1829 with later alterations. Application is to install awnings and planter boxes.

# 248 Lafayette Street, aka 87 Crosby Street - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic District Extension 158209 - Block 496 - Lot 5 - Zoning: M1-5B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Renaissance Revival style store and loft building designed by C. Abbott French and built in 1900. Application is to install storefront infill and an accessible lift.

# 248 Lafayette Street, aka 87 Crosby Street - SoHo-Cast Iron Historic District Extension 175028 - Block 496 -Lot 5 - Zoning: M1-5B MODIFICATION OF USE AND BULK A Renaissance Revival style store and loft building designed by C.

Abbott French and built in 1900. Application is to request that the Landmarks Preservation Commission issue a report to the City Planning Commission relating to an application for Special Permit pursuant to Section 74-711of the Zoning Resolution for a Modification of Use

# **58-60 9th Avenue - Gansevoort Market Historic District 169175** - Block 738 -Lot 78 - **Zoning:** C6-2A **CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS**

A pair of Greek Revival style rowhouses built in 1841-42. Application is to enlarge a rooftop addition, construct bulkheads, raise a parapet, and install lintels.

### 32 Dominick Street - Individual Landmark 172190 - Block 578 -Lot 64 - Zoning: M1-6 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Federal style rowhouse built c. 1826. Application is to demolish a rear yard addition, construct a rear yard addition and alter a dormer.

# 14 Christopher Street, aka 20 Gay Street - Greenwich Village

Historic District
168362 - Block 593 -Lot 45 - Zoning: R6
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A loft building designed by Frederick C. Zobel and built in 1896-97 and later converted to an apartment house. Application is to legalize the replacement of storefront infill, alterations to windows, and installation of awnings, signage and menu box without Landmarks Preservation Commission permit(s).

### 44 West 77th Street - Multiple 170663 - Block 1129 - Lot 55 - Zoning: R-10A CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A neo-Gothic style studio building designed by Harde & Short and built in 1907-09. Application is to replace windows.

### 235 West 44th Street - Individual Landmark 175584 - Block 1016 - Lot 1 - Zoning: C6-5 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A neo-Classical style theater designed by Herbert J. Krapp and built in 1917-18. Application is to install LED signage.

### 275 Madison Avenue - Individual Landmark 172897 - Block 869 - Lot 54 - Zoning: C5-3, C5-2.5 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

An Art Deco style skyscraper designed by Kenneth Franzheim and built in 1930-31. Application is to replace a door.

#### 40 West 96th Street - Upper West Side/Central Park West **Historic District**

175065 - Block 1209 - Lot 48 - Zoning: R9 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Renaissance Revival style rowhouse designed by George F. Pelham

and built in 1897. Application is to construct a rear yard addition and excavate at the rear yard.

## 41 West 76th Street - Central Park West - 76th Street Historic District 164279 - Block 1129 - Lot 9 - Zoning: R8B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Romanesque Revival style rowhouse, designed by G. A. Schillinger, and built in 1891-93. Application is to construct a rooftop addition and modify the rear façade and rear ell.

### 706 Madison Avenue - Upper East Side Historic District 175110 - Block 1377 - Lot 58 - Zoning: C5-1 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A neo-Federal style building designed by Merwin Shrady and built in 1940, a neo-Federal style bank building designed by Frank Easton Newman and built in 1921, and an empty lot with a brick wall. Application is to replace the sidewalk.

324-326 West 108th Street - Riverside - West End Historic District Extension II 171185 - Block 1892 - Lot 60 - Zoning: R8B

CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

Two Renaissance Revival style rowhouses designed by Janes & Leo and built in 1898-99. Application is to construct rooftop and rear yard additions and bulkheads, replace windows, doors and ironwork, and alter openings

320 West 101st Street - Riverside - West End Historic District **Extension II** 

174002 - Block 1889 - Lot 28 - Zoning: R8B CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS

A Beaux Arts style rowhouse designed by George F. Pelham and built in 1900-01. Application is to construct a rear yard addition and rooftop bulkhead, and modify masonry.

#### RECORDS AND INFORMATION SERVICES

■ MEETING

The Archive Review Board will meet on Wednesday, September 16, 2015 at 10:30 A.M. at 31 Chambers Street, Room 305, New York, NY

Please contact Ken Cobb for details kcobb@records.nyc.gov

s10-16

#### TRANSPORTATION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the following proposed revocable consents, have been scheduled for a public hearing by the New York City Department of Transportation. The hearing will be held at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, Room 945 commencing at 2:00 P.M. on Wednesday, September 16, 2015. Interested parties can obtain copies of proposed agreements or request sign-language interpreters (with at least seven days prior notice) at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor South West, New York, NY 10041, or by calling (212) 839-6550.

IN THE MATTER OF a proposed revocable consent authorizing 18 Gramercy Park Condominium to install, maintain and use four (4) planters on the south sidewalk of Gramercy Park South, between Irving Place and Park Avenue South and five (5) planters on the west sidewalk of Irving place, between East 19th Street and Gramercy Park South, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2026 - \$225/per annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$3,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

IN THE MATTER OF a proposed revocable consent authorizing 300 West 23<sup>rd</sup> Street Owners Corp. to continue to maintain and use planters along the south sidewalk of West 23<sup>rd</sup> Street, between Eighth and Ninth Avenues, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2025 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2025 - \$64/per annum

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$1,000 and the

insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate

**#3** IN THE MATTER OF a proposed revocable consent authorizing DOLP 1155 Properties ll LLC to continue to maintain and use twelve (12) planters on the south sidewalk of West 45th Street, west of Avenue of the Americas and on the west sidewalk of Avenue of the Americas between West  $44^{\rm th}$  and West  $45^{\rm th}$  Streets, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2024 - \$300/annum

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$1,200 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

**IN THE MATTER OF** a proposed revocable consent authorizing Ellivkroy Realty Corporation to continue to maintain and use planters on the south sidewalk of East 86th Street, west of York Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2024 - \$50/annum

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$500 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

IN THE MATTER OF a proposed revocable consent authorizing Juice Press 10 LLC to install, maintain and use two benches on the north sidewalk of Madison Avenue, between East  $92^{\rm nd}$  and East  $93^{\rm rd}$  Street and one bench on the east sidewalk of East  $92^{\rm nd}$  Street, between Madison Avenue and Fifth Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following

From the Approval Date to the Expiration Date - \$450/per annum

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$1,000 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

**IN THE MATTER OF** a proposed revocable consent authorizing Lyceum Theatre Corporation to continue to maintain and use bollards on the north sidewalk of West 45th Street, east of Seventh Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2025 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2025 - \$150/annum

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$1,500 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

NOTICE OF A SPECIAL FRANCHISE AND CONCESSION REVIEW COMMITTEE ("FCRC") PUBLIC HEARING to be held on Monday, September 28, 2015, commencing at 2:30 P.M. at 22 Reade Street, Borough of Manhattan relating to: 1) a proposed change in control of Cemusa NY, LLC ("Franchisee"), which, pursuant to an assignment from Cemusa Inc. (immediate parent of Franchisee), holds a non-exclusive franchise giving it the right to (a) install, operate and  $% \left( x\right) =\left( x\right) +\left( x\right) +$ maintain bus shelters, automatic public toilets, and public service structures and install and maintain newsstands on the inalienable property of the City and (b) sell and place advertising as set forth in the franchise agreement and to derive revenue therefrom. In this transaction, all of the shares of Corporación Europea de Mobiliario Urbano, S.A. (immediate parent of Cemusa Inc.) in Cemusa Inc. would be transferred to JC Decaux North America, Inc., thereby resulting in a change in control of Franchisee (hereinafter referred to as the "2015 Change in Control"); and 2) proposed amendments to the franchise agreement, in the form of an amended and restated franchise agreement ("franchise agreement"), that will modify various sections including but not limited to: (a) an increase in overseas markets for NYC & COMPANY advertising; (b) the elimination of the City's option to return any or all of its share of advertising panels on the Coordinated Franchise Structures (as defined in the franchise agreement) for cash to be paid by the Franchisee to the City; (c) changes to the total number of bus shelters obligated to be installed by the Franchisee, including but not limited to specific bus shelters on 5th Avenue between 34th Street and 59th Street and the right of the City in certain circumstances to reciprocal shelters; (d) the obligation of the City to compensate Franchisee for depreciation of certain bus shelters in the event that an advertising Public Communications Structure or Public Pay Telephone is installed on 5<sup>th</sup> Avenue between 34th Street and 59th

Street; and (e) clarification of the alternative compensation language that confirms the obligation of the Franchisee to exclude the value added tax ("VAT") from computation of the value owed to the City in alternative compensation.

A copy of the proposed franchise agreement, including an organizational and ownership structure chart ("organization chart") reflecting the proposed 2015 Change in Control will be available for viewing, by appointment, at the Department of Transportation, 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10041, commencing September 14, 2015 through September 28, 2015, between the hours of 10:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M., excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. The proposed franchise agreement, including the proposed organization chart may also be obtained in hard copy or PDF form at no cost, by email request. Interested parties should contact Helena Morales by email at streetfurniture@dot.nyc.gov or by telephone at (212) 839-6550.

NOTE: Individuals requesting sign language interpreters or any other accommodation of disability at the public hearing should contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Public Hearing Unit, 253 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING. TDD users should call Verizon relay service.

The Hearing may be cablecast on NYCMedia channels.

s4-25

#### PROPERTY DISPOSITION

#### CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

■ SALE

The City of New York, in partnership with PropertyRoom.com, posts vehicle and heavy machinery auctions online every week at: http://www.propertyroom.com/s/dcas

All auctions are open to the general public, and registration is free.

Vehicles can be viewed in person by appointment at: KenBen Industries, 364 Maspeth Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11211. Phone: (718) 802-0022

a28-o6

#### OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PROCUREMENT

#### NOTICE

The Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Procurement is currently selling surplus assets on the internet. Visit http://www.publicsurplus.com/sms/nycdcas.ny/browse/home.

To begin bidding, simply click on 'Register' on the home page.

There are no fees to register. Offerings may include but are not limited to: office supplies/equipment, furniture, building supplies, machine tools, HVAC/plumbing/electrical equipment, lab equipment, marine equipment, and more.

Public access to computer workstations and assistance with placing bids is available at the following locations:

- DCAS Central Storehouse, 66-26 Metropolitan Avenue, Middle Village, NY 11379
- DCAS, Office of Citywide Procurement, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007

j2-d31

#### **POLICE**

■ NOTICE

# OWNERS ARE WANTED BY THE PROPERTY CLERK DIVISION OF THE NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT

The following listed property is in the custody, of the Property Clerk Division without claimants. Recovered, lost, abandoned property,

obtained from prisoners, emotionally disturbed, intoxicated and deceased persons; and property obtained from persons incapable of caring for themselves.

Motor vehicles, boats, bicycles, business machines, cameras, calculating machines, electrical and optical property, furniture, furs, handbags, hardware, jewelry, photographic equipment, radios, robes, sound systems, surgical and musical instruments, tools, wearing apparel, communications equipment, computers, and other miscellaneous articles.

#### **INQUIRIES**

Inquiries relating to such property should be made in the Borough concerned, at the following office of the Property Clerk.

#### FOR MOTOR VEHICLES (All Boroughs):

- Springfield Gardens Auto Pound, 174-20 North Boundary Road, Queens, NY 11430, (718) 553-9555
- Erie Basin Auto Pound, 700 Columbia Street, Brooklyn, NY 11231, (718) 246-2030

#### FOR ALL OTHER PROPERTY

- Manhattan 1 Police Plaza, New York, NY 10038, (646) 610-5906
- Brooklyn 84th Precinct, 301 Gold Street, Brooklyn, NY 11201, (718) 875-6675
- Bronx Property Clerk 215 East 161 Street, Bronx, NY 10451, (718) 590-2806
- Queens Property Clerk 47-07 Pearson Place, Long Island City, NY 11101, (718) 433-2678
- Staten Island Property Clerk 1 Edgewater Plaza, Staten Island, NY 10301, (718) 876-8484

j2-d31

#### PROCUREMENT

#### "Compete To Win" More Contracts!

Thanks to a new City initiative - "Compete To Win" - the NYC Department of Small Business Services offers a new set of FREE services to help create more opportunities for minority and women-owned businesses to compete, connect and grow their business with the City. With NYC Construction Loan, Technical Assistance, NYC Construction Mentorship, Bond Readiness, and NYC Teaming services, the City will be able to help even more small businesses than before.

• Win More Contracts at nyc.gov/competetowin

"The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination. The contracting opportunities for construction/construction services and construction-related services that appear in the individual agency listings below reflect that commitment to excellence."

#### **HHS ACCELERATOR**

To respond to human services Requests for Proposals (RFPs), in accordance with Section 3-16 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York ("PPB Rules"), vendors must first complete and submit an electronic prequalification application using the City's Health and Human Services (HHS) Accelerator System. The HHS Accelerator System is a web-based system maintained by the City of New York for use by its human services Agencies to manage procurement. The process removes redundancy by capturing information about boards, filings, policies, and general service experience centrally. As a result, specific proposals for funding are more focused on program design, scope, and budget.

Important information about the new method

- Prequalification applications are required every three years.
- Documents related to annual corporate filings must be submitted on an annual basis to remain eligible to compete.

- Prequalification applications will be reviewed to validate compliance with corporate filings, organizational capacity, and relevant service experience.
- Approved organizations will be eligible to compete and would submit electronic proposals through the system.

The Client and Community Service Catalog, which lists all Prequalification service categories and the NYC Procurement Roadmap, which lists all RFPs to be managed by HHS Accelerator may be viewed at http://www.nyc.gov/html/hhsaccelerator/html/roadmap/roadmap.shtml. All current and prospective vendors should frequently review information listed on roadmap to take full advantage of upcoming opportunities for funding.

#### **Participating NYC Agencies**

HHS Accelerator, led by the Office of the Mayor, is governed by an Executive Steering Committee of Agency Heads who represent the following NYC Agencies:

Administration for Children's Services (ACS) Department for the Aging (DFTA)
Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA)
Department of Corrections (DOC)

Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH) Department of Homeless Services (DHS)

Department of Probation (DOP)

Department of Small Business Services (SBS)

Department of Youth and Community Development (DYCD)

Housing and Preservation Department (HPD) Human Resources Administration (HRA) Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator (CJC)

To sign up for training on the new system, and for additional information about HHS Accelerator, including background materials, user guides and video tutorials, please visit www.nyc.gov/hhsaccelerator

#### CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

■ AWARD

Goods

SULFATE, LIQUID ALUMINUM (DEP) - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#8571400481 - AMT; \$1,706,936.00 - TO; Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC, 90 East Halsey Road, Parsippany, NJ 07054.

• s16

#### OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PROCUREMENT

■ VENDOR LIST

Goods

#### EQUIPMENT FOR DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION

In accordance with PPB Rules, Section 2.05(c)(3), an acceptable brands list will be established for the following equipment for the Department of Sanitation:

A. Collection Truck Bodies

B. Collection Truck Cab Chassis

C. Major Component Parts (Engine, Transmission, etc.)

Applications for consideration of equipment products for inclusion on the acceptable brands list are available from: Mr. Edward Andersen, Procurement Analyst, Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Procurement, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. (212) 669-8509

j2-d31

■ SOLICITATION

Goods

# TRUCK,6 C.Y. REAR LOADING REFUSE COLLECTION- PARKS

Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#8571500526 - Due 10-9-15 at 10:30 A.M.

A copy of the bid can be downloaded from the City Record Online site at http://www.nyc.gov/cityrecord. Enrollment is free. Vendors may also request the bid by contacting Vendor Relations via email at dcasdmssbids@dcas.nyc.gov, by telephone at (212) 386-0044 or by fax at 212-669-7603.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Citywide Administrative Services, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. Joseph Vacirca (212) 669-8616; Fax: (212) 669-7581; jvacirca@dcas.nyc.gov **≠** s16

#### DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTS

■ SOLICITATION

 $Construction/Construction\ Services$ 

RECONSTRUCTION OF COLLAPSED OR OTHERWISE DEFECTIVE STORM, SANITARY OR COMBINED VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE SEWERS IN VARIOUS LOCATIONS - BOROUGH OF STATEN ISLAND - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#85016B0009 Due 10-20-15 at 11:00 A.M.

PROJECT NO.: SER00201Y DDC/PIN:8502015SE0048C Bid document deposit-\$35.00 per set-company check or money order only-no cash accepted-late bids will not be accepted. Experience requirements. Apprenticeship participation requirements apply to this contract. Bid documents are available at: http://www.nyc.gov/buildnyc. VENDOR SOURCE ID# 89084

This procurement is subject to Minority-Owned and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) participation goals as required by Local Law 1 of 2013. All respondents will be required to submit an MWBE Participation Plan with their response. For the MWBE goals, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/buildnyc see "Bid Opportunities". For a list of companies certified by the New York City Department of Small Business Services, please visit www.nyc.gov/buycertified. To find out how to become certified, visit www.nyc.gov/getcertified or call the DSBS certification helpline at (212) 513-6311.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Emmanuel Charles (718) 391-3170; Fax: (718) 391-2615; charlesem@ddc.nyc.gov

EMERGENCY REHABILITATION OF SANITARY AND COMBINED SEWERS BY USING DEP APPROVED LINING METHOD IN VARIOUS LOCATIONS-CITYWIDE - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#85016B0010 - Due 10-16-15 at 11:00 A.M.

• s16

**▼** s16

PROJECT NO.:SE-LC-19/DDC PIN:8502015SE0013C Bid document deposit-\$35.00 per set-company check or money order only-no cash accepted-late bids will not be accepted. Experience requirements. Apprenticeship participation requirements apply to this contract. Bid documents are available at: http://www.nyc.gov/buildnyc. VENDOR SOURCE#89084

This procurement is subject to Minority-Owned and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) participation goals as required by Local Law 1 of 2013. All respondents will be required to submit an M/WBE Participation Plan with their response. For the MWBE goals, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/buildnyc see "Bid Opportunities". For a list of companies certified by the New York City Department of Small Business Services, please visit www.nyc.gov/buycertified. To find out how to become certified, visit www.nyc.gov/getcertified or call the DSBS certification helpline at (212) 513-6311.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Emmanuel Charles (718) 391-3170; Fax: (718) 391-2615; charlesem@ddc.nyc.gov

CONSTRUCTION OF TRUNK AND DISTRIBUTION WATER MAINS IN ARVERNE BOULEVARD BETWEEN BEACH 59TH ST. AND BEACH 54TH ST. ETC.-BOROUGH OF QUEENS - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#85015B0184 - Due 10-20-15 at 11:00 A.M.

PROJECT NO.:QED-1007/DDC PIN: 8502014WM0013C Bid document deposit-\$35.00 per set-company check or money order only-no cash accepted-late bids will not be accepted. Experience requirements. Apprenticeship participation requirements apply to this contract. Bid documents are available at: http://www.nyc.gov/buildnyc. VENDOR SOURCE#89083

This procurement is subject to Minority-Owned and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) participation goals as required by Local Law 1 of 2013. All respondents will be required to submit an M/WBE Participation Plan with their response. For the MWBE goals, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/buildnyc see "Bid Opportunities". For a list of companies certified by the New York City Department of Small Business Services, please visit www.nyc.gov/buycertified. To find

out how to become certified, visit www.nyc.gov/getcertified or call the DSBS certification helpline at (212) 513-6311.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Emmanuel Charles (718) 391-3170; Fax: (718) 391-2615; charlesem@ddc.nyc.gov

**▼** s16

#### **ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

#### WASTEWATER TREATMENT

■ AWARD

Services (other than human services)

TRANSPORTATION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR NYC BIOSOLIDS AT VARIOUS WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES. - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#82615B0063001 - AMT: \$41,630,000.00 - TO: Environmental Protection and Improvement Company (EPIC), 227 US Highway, 206 Building 2nd Floor, Flanders, N.J. 07856. 1425-BIO

**≠** s16

#### FIRE DEPARTMENT

#### FISCAL SERVICES

■ SOLICITATION

Services (other than human services)

MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT OF IBM SOFTWARE PRODUCTS - Competitive Sealed Bids - PIN#057160000395 - Due 10-15-15 at 4:00 P.M.

The New York City Fire Department requires a Contractor to provide maintenance and support of IBM Products.

\*\*THERE WILL BE NO PRE-BID CONFERENCE FOR THIS PROCUREMENT\*

VENDOR SOURCE ID: 89088. EPIN No. 05715B0013

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Fire Department, 9 Metrotech Center, 5W-13-K, Brooklyn, NY 11201. Edward Woda (718) 999-8162; Fax: (718) 999-0177;

edward.woda@fdny.nyc.gov

**◆** s16

#### HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

The New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation is regularly soliciting bids for supplies and equipment at its Central Purchasing Offices, 346 Broadway, New York City, Room 516, for its Hospitals and Diagnostic and Treatment Centers. All interested parties are welcome to review the bids that are posted in Room 516 weekdays between 9:00 A.M. and 4:30 P.M. For information regarding bids and the bidding process, please call (212) 442-4018.

i2-d31

#### HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

LEGAL

■ INTENT TO AWARD

Services (other than human services)

2017 NEW YORK CITY HOUSING AND VACANCY SURVEY - Government to Government - PIN#80616T0001 - Due 9-30-15 at 11:00 A.M.

In accordance with Section 3-13 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York, the New York City Department of Housing Preservation and Development (HPD) intends to enter into a Government to Government contract with the United States Bureau of the Census (USBC) for the provision of services to plan and conduct the New York City (NYC) 2017 Housing and Vacancy Survey. Determination to utilize the government to government procurement method is based on USBC being the only entity possessing a complete list of the addresses of all dwelling units in NYC which must be used as a sample frame for the Survey. Firms who believe they can provide these services for future solicitations are requested to express their interest by notifying the Agency Contact no later than 11:00 A.M. on September 30, 2015.

The survey is being conducted in accordance with Section 3-13 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York; the Local Emergency Housing Rent Control Act (Chapter 21, Laws of New York, 1962 as amended by Chapter 657, Laws of New York 1967 and subsequent amendments) and Section 26-415 of the NYC Administrative Code requiring that this Survey be conducted at least once in every three years. Further, confidentiality provisions in the United States Law prohibit release of the address list to any entity for any purpose.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Housing Preservation and Development, 100 Gold Street, Room 8B-05, New York, NY 10038. Jay Bernstein (212) 863-6657; Fax: (212) 863-5455; jb1@hpd.nyc.gov

s14-18

#### HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION

#### AGENCY CHIEF CONTRACTING OFFICER

■ AWARD

Human Services/Client Services

CEO ANTI-POVERTY PROGRAM EVALUATION AND **RESEARCH SERVICES** - Renewal - PIN#09611P004003R001 - AMT: \$1,083,333.00 - TO: Chapin Hall Center for Children, 1313 East 60th Street, Chicago, IL 60637. Term: 6/1/2015 - 5/31/2018

**ず** s16

#### PARKS AND RECREATION

■ VENDOR LIST

Construction/Construction Services

PREQUALIFIED VENDOR LIST: GENERAL CONSTRUCTION -NON-COMPLEX GENERAL CONSTRUCTION SITE WORK ASSOCIATED WITH NEW YORK CITY DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION ("DPR" AND/OR "PARKS") PARKS AND PLAYGROUNDS CONSTRUCTION AND RECONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

DPR is seeking to evaluate and pre-qualify a list of general contractors (a "PQL") exclusively to conduct non-complex general construction site work involving the construction and reconstruction of DPR parks and playgrounds projects not exceeding \$3 million per contract ("General

By establishing contractor's qualification and experience in advance, DPR will have a pool of competent contractors from which it can draw to promptly and effectively reconstruct and construction its parks, playgrounds, beaches, gardens and green-streets. DPR will select contractors from the General Construction PQL for non-complex general construction site work of up to \$3,000,000.00 per contract through the use of a Competitive Sealed Bid solicited from the PQL generated from this RFQ.

The vendors selected for inclusion in the General Construction PQL will be invited to participate in the NYC Construction Mentorship. NYC Construction Mentorship focuses on increasing the use of small NYC contracts, and winning larger contracts with larger values. Firms participating in NYC Construction Mentorship will have the opportunity to take management classes and receive on-the-job training provided by a construction management firm.

DPR will only consider applications for this General Construction PQL from contractors who meet any one of the following criteria:

The submitting entity must be a Certified Minority/Woman Business enterprise (M/WBE)\*;

- 2) The submitting entity must be a registered joint venture or have a valid legal agreement as a joint venture, with at least one of the entities in the joint venture being a certified M/WBE\*;
- The submitting entity must indicate a commitment to sub-contract no less than 50 percent of any awarded job to a certified M/WBE for every work order awarded.

\*Firms that are in the process of becoming a New York City-certified M/WBE may submit a PQL application and submit a M/WBE Acknowledgement Letter, which states the Department of Small Business Services has began the Certification process.

Application documents may also be obtained on-line at: http://a856-internet.nyc.gov/nycvendoronline/home.asap or http://www.nycgovparks.org/opportunities/business

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, Olmsted Center, Annex, Flushing Meadows-Corona Park, Flushing, NY 11368. Charlette Hamamgian (718) 760-6789; Fax: (718) 760-6781; charlette.hamamgian@parks.nyc.gov

j2-d31

#### REVENUE

#### ■ SOLICITATION

Services (other than human services)

#### OPERATION OF OUTDOOR CAFE IN RIVERSIDE PARK

- Competitive Sealed Proposals - Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN#M7179-R - Due 10-22-15 at 3:00 P.M.

In accordance with Section 1-13 of the Concession Rules of the City of New York, the New York City Department of Parks and Recreation ("Parks") is issuing, as of the date of this notice, a Request for Proposals ("RFP") for the operation, renovation, and maintenance of an outdoor café at the Rotunda at 79th Street in Riverside Park, Manhattan.

There will be a recommended site visit on Friday, September 25, 2015 at 11:00 A.M. We will be meeting at the northwest corner of W 79th Street and Riverside Drive in Riverside Park, Manhattan. If you are considering responding to this RFP, please make every effort to attend this recommended site visit.

Hard copies of the RFP can be obtained, at no cost. To download the RFP, visit www.nyc.gov/parks/businessopportunities, click on the link for "Concessions Opportunities at Parks" and, after logging in, click on the "download" link that appears adjacent to the RFP's description.

#### TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal, Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10065. Eitan Adler (212) 360-3454; Fax: (917) 849-6642; eitan.adler@parks.nyc.gov

s9-22

#### REVENUE AND CONCESSIONS

#### ■ SOLICITATION

Services (other than human services)

OPERATION, RENOVATION AND MAINTENANCE OF A **RESTAURANT** - Competitive Sealed Proposals - Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN#M10-14-RB, SB, R-2015 - Due 11-9-15 at

The New York City Department of Parks and Recreation ("Parks") is issuing, as of the date of this notice, a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the operation, renovation and maintenance of a restaurant, snack bar and rowboat rental at the Loeb Boathouse, Central Park, Manhattan.

There will be a recommended proposer meeting and site tour on Wednesday, September 30, 2015 at 1:00 P.M. We will be meeting at the

proposed concession site (Block # 1111 and Lot # 1), which is located at the Loeb Boathouse, in Central Park, Manhattan. If you are considering responding to this RFP, please make every effort to attend this recommended meeting and site tour.

#### TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor prequalification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, Olmsted Center, Annex, Flushing Meadows-Corona Park, Flushing, NY 11368, Charlette Hamangian (718) 760-6789; Fax: (718) 760-6781; charlette.hamamgian@parks.nyc.gov

s14-25

### AGENCY PUBLIC HEARINGS ON CONTRACT AWARDS

NOTE: INDIVIDUALS REQUESTING SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS SHOULD CONTACT THE MAYOR'S OFFICE OF CONTRACT SERVICES, PUBLIC HEARINGS UNIT, 253 BROADWAY, 9TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10007, (212) 788-7490, NO LATER THAN SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING. TDD USERS SHOULD CALL VERIZON RELAY SERVICES.

#### ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held at the Administration for Children's Services, 150 William Street, 9th Floor - Room 9J-2, Borough of Manhattan, on September 30, 2015 commencing at 10:00 A.M. on the following:

IN THE MATTER OF two (2) proposed negotiated acquisition extensions between the Administration for Children's Services of the City of New York and the contractors listed below, for the provision of Expert Witness Services . The term of the contracts is from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016.

Eileen C. Treacy, Ph.D., 1516 Stadium Avenue, Bronx, NY 10465 Contractor 1:

EPIN#: 06806N0004CNVN006 Amount: \$100,000.00 Anne Meltzer, Psy.D., PC, 15 Leatherstocking Lane, Scarsdale, NY 10583

Contractor 2:

EPIN#: 06806N0001CNVN006 Amount: \$100,000.00

The proposed contractors have been selected by means of a Negotiated Acquisition Extension, pursuant to Section 3-04 (b)(2)(iii) of the Procurement Policy Board Rules.

A copy of the draft extension agreements are available for inspection at the New York City Administration for Children's Services, Office of Procurement, 150 William Street, 9th Floor, Borough of Manhattan, on business days from September 16, 2015 through September 29, 2015, exclusive of holidays, between the hours of 10:00 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. Please contact Hazel Harber of the Office of Procurement at (212) 676-8811 to arrange a visitation.

Anyone who wishes to speak at this public hearing should request to do so in writing. The written request must be received by the agency within 5 business days after publication of this notice. Written request should be sent to Hazel Harber, New York City Administration for Children's Services, 150 William Street, Loc. 9K5, New York, NY 10038 or via email to hazel.harber@acs.nyc.gov. Pursuant to Section 2-11(c)(3) of the Procurement Policy Board rules, if ACS does not receive a written request to speak within the prescribed time, then it need not conduct this hearing.

### AGENCY RULES

#### **HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE**

■ NOTICE

# Notice of Adoption of Amendments to the New York City Health Code

In compliance with Section 1043(b) of the New York City Charter (the "Charter") and pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Health (the "Board") by Section 558 of said Charter, a notice of intention to amend Article 181 of the New York City Health Code (the "Health Code") was published in the City Record on June 23, 2015, and a public hearing was held on July 28, 2015. No one testified. While written comments were received, no changes have been made to the amendment proposed. At its meeting on September 9, 2015, the Board of Health adopted the following resolution.

#### Statement of Basis and Purpose

#### Statutory Authority

These amendments to the Health Code are promulgated pursuant to Sections 558 and 1043 of the Charter. Sections 558(b) and (c) of the Charter empower the Board to amend the Health Code and to include in the Health Code all matters to which the authority of the New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (the "Department") extends. Section 1043 of the Charter grants the Department rule-making authority. The amendment is also made pursuant to the Department's historic power to supervise the control of communicable disease in New York City.

#### Background

The Charter provides the Department with broad jurisdiction to protect and promote the health of all New Yorkers. The control of communicable disease is a core public health function. At its meeting on September 13, 2012, the Board of Health voted to amend Article 181 by adding a requirement that, prior to a circumcision involving direct oral suction ("DOS") of infants less than 60 days of age, the person performing the circumcision obtain the written consent of a parent. In the consent, the parent acknowledges that he or she is aware that the Department recommends DOS, also known as <code>metzitzah b'peh</code>, not be performed because of the risk of brain damage and death.

Circumcisions that include DOS involve direct contact between the mouth of the practitioner designated by the religious community to perform a circumcision, known as a mohel, and the infant's circumcision wound. The opposition of some members of the Orthodox Jewish community who practice DOS has made enforcement of the consent requirement difficult. Since the provision went into effect, there have been six cases of herpes simplex-1 (HSV-1) infection reported in infants following DOS in New York City, including four cases reported in 2014. In two of these six cases, the mohel who was associated with the case was identified in the course of the Department's case investigation, and a signed consent form was provided by the mohel in one of these two cases. The limited effectiveness of the consent requirement at this time prompted the department to consider alternative approaches to address this problem.

In February, 2015, the Mayor announced a new strategy to address this problem. As part of this approach, the Department will work cooperatively with leaders of the Orthodox Jewish community to educate parents about the risks of DOS. These educational efforts will include working with hospitals throughout the City to distribute educational materials about the risks of DOS to the parents of all newborn infant boys, as well as making this information available at other health care settings, such as obstetric and pediatric practices. These materials, which include a Department telephone number for parents who may have questions, have been translated into Yiddish and are being distributed at hospitals and medical offices that service communities where DOS is practiced. The Department's educational initiative is more likely to succeed if the Department can restore a strong relationship with these communities. Accordingly, the Board is repealing Section 181.21 of the Health Code.

The resolution is as follows:

Note- matter in [ ] brackets to be deleted;

Matter <u>underlined</u> is new.

RESOLVED, that Section 181.21 of the New York City Health

Code, set forth in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, regarding consent for direct oral suction as part of a circumcision, is hereby REPEALED, and explanatory notes be printed to read as follows:

Notes: §181.21 (Consent for direct oral suction as part of a circumcision) was repealed by resolution adopted by the Board of Health at its meeting on September 9, 2015.

RESOLVED, that the Table of Section Headings of Article 181 of the New York City Health Code, set forth in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York be amended, to be printed together with explanatory notes, to read as follows:

#### ARTICLE 181

#### PROTECTION OF PUBLIC HEALTH GENERALLY

§181.01 **Definitions**.

\* \*

# [§181.21 Consent for direct oral suction as part of a circumcision.]

Notes: Article 181 was amended by resolution adopted by the Board of Health at its September 9, 2015 meeting, repealing §181.21 (Consent for direct oral suction as part of a circumcision).

**≠** s16

# Notice of Adoption of Amendments to Article 81 of the New York City Health Code

In compliance with Section 1043(b) of the New York City Charter (the "Charter") and pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Health (the "Board") by Section 558 of said Charter, a notice of intention to amend Article 81 of the New York City Health Code (the "Health Code") to add a new Section 81.49 (Sodium warning) was published in the City Record on June 23, 2015 and a public hearing was held on July 29, 2015. Ninety-four (94) written comments were received, including comments from nine people who also testified. Changes made to the resolution in response to the comments are noted below. At its meeting on September 9, 2015 the Board adopted the following resolution.

#### **Statement of Basis and Purpose**

Statutory Authority

Section 558 of the Charter authorizes the Board to amend the Health Code and to include in the Health Code all matters to which the authority of the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene ("the Department") extends. Section 556 of the Charter gives the Department jurisdiction to regulate all matters affecting health in New York City and makes the Department responsible for controlling disease and regulating the City's food supply.

The regulation of food service establishments ("FSEs"), a category that includes both quick-service and sit-down restaurants, is a core public health function. The Department issues permits to and inspects FSEs in New York City to ensure safe and healthy dining options.

The Board is amending the Health Code to require FSEs that are part of chains with more than 15 locations across the nation to add a warning label to menus and menu boards, identifying food items that contain very high levels of sodium.

#### Sodium and Cardiovascular Disease

Cardiovascular disease is the leading cause of death in New York City, claiming nearly 17,000 lives in in 2013.¹ Hypertension, or high blood pressure, is a major risk factor for heart disease and stroke. A 2013 survey conducted by the Department revealed that 29.1% of adult New Yorkers had been told they had hypertension by a healthcare professional.² Although hypertension is a complex vascular disease with many origins, a well-established connection between sodium intake and blood pressure has been documented in the scientific literature. Specifically, there is a continuous relationship between sodium and blood pressure – typically, the higher an individual's sodium intake, the higher the individual's blood pressure.³ In addition, disparities exist in terms of sodium intake, hypertension control, and related risk of disease – for example, premature stroke mortality is nearly three times as high among non-Hispanic Blacks in New York City compared to Whites and Asians.

#### New Yorkers Consume Too Much Sodium

Americans consume excessive amounts of sodium. More than 95% of American adults report consuming more than 2300 mg of sodium per day, the maximum recommended daily limit. <sup>4,5</sup> On average, American adults consume approximately 3,400 mg of sodium daily, well above the recommended limit. <sup>6</sup> Sodium overconsumption is a reality in New York City as well. A 2010 study conducted found that average daily sodium consumption among New Yorkers was more than 3,200 mg. <sup>7</sup> The New York City study also revealed disparities in consumption with higher sodium intake among non-Hispanic Blacks and Hispanics compared to non-Hispanic Whites. <sup>8</sup>

Restaurant Food is a Primary Source of Sodium

The contemporary food retail environment is an important contributor to the epidemic of sodium overconsumption. Despite myriad efforts and initiatives to curb sodium consumption by public health and other organizations, the sodium content of fast food, in particular, appears to be on the rise. A 2013 study examining the change in the sodium content of menu offerings at 8 leading fast food chains found that the mean sodium content of menu items had increased more than 23% between 1997 and 2010.9 Heavily marketed and competitively priced, the food available in many restaurants contains very high levels of sodium. A 2014 study analyzing the nutritional profile of more than 2,500 items from chain restaurants in and near Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, found that adult meals contained an average of 3.512 mg of sodium, more than 50% above the daily recommended intake limit.<sup>10</sup> A similar study using receipt data collected in 2007 from over 6,500 transactions occurring at fast food chain outlets in New York City demonstrated that the sodium content of 20% of meals exceeded the daily recommended sodium intake limit. 11 Today, nearly one-third of the sodium consumed by Americans comes from restaurant food. 12

New Yorkers Need to be Warned about High Sodium Foods An additional factor that contributes to sodium overconsumption is the lack of awareness regarding the risks related to excess sodium intake. Consumers typically underestimate the sodium content of restaurant food<sup>13</sup> and are generally unaware of both sodium intake recommendations and the major sources of dietary sodium.14 In addition, menu items that are promoted as healthy options, like salads, can contain high levels of sodium (Applebee's Grilled Shrimp 'n Spinach Salad with regular dressing contains 2,990 mg of sodium, Baja Fresh Mexican Grill's Shrimp Tostada Salad contains nearly 2,500 mg of sodium), putting even the most health-conscious consumers at risk. Differences in formulation that result in similar foods containing highly variable amounts of sodium present another obstacle to consumers trying to comply with sodium intake recommendations. For example, Panera Bread offers a Smokehouse Turkey® Panini that contains 2,590 mg of sodium and a Roasted Turkey & Avocado BLT Sandwich that contains 960 mg of sodium.

It is imperative that consumers are readily able to identify menu items containing the recommended daily limit of 2,300 mg or more of sodium, because these items are clearly incompatible with recommendations regarding sodium consumption. The proposed consumer warning label will provide consumers with information about food items that contain exceedingly high sodium levels and will empower them to make well-informed decisions when making choices for themselves and their family members in the food retail environment.

#### Amendments to Article 81

Accordingly, Health Code Article 81 is being amended to add a new Section 81.49 requiring chain FSEs (those with 15 or more locations nationally) to warn consumers about any menu items containing 2,300 mg of sodium or more. <sup>15</sup> The schedule of section headings in Article 81 is also being amended to include the new section.

These amendments affect FSEs with 15 or more locations nationally, capturing leading fast-food and fast-casual restaurants, which can easily make sodium information available. The definition of a covered establishment in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) has been made consistent with the definition in Section 81.50. In response to a comment, the definition for food with high sodium content in paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) has been clarified.

\* \*

The resolution is as follows.

"Shall" and "must" denote mandatory requirements and may be used interchangeably.

New text is underlined.

**RESOLVED**, that Article 81 of the New York City Health Code, set forth in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, be amended to add a new Section 81.49, to be printed together with explanatory notes to read as follows:

#### §81.49 Sodium warning.

- (a) Definitions. When used in this section the following words and terms have the following meanings:
  - (1) Combination meal means a standard menu item that consists of more than one food item. A combination meal may be represented on the menu or menu board in narrative form, numerically, or pictorially. Some combination meals may include a variable menu item or be a variable menu item, as defined in this subdivision, where the components may vary and the customer selects which components will be included in the meal.
  - (2) Covered establishment means a food service establishment, as defined in §81.03 of the Health Code and permitted by the

- Department, that is part of a chain with 15 or more locations doing business under the same name and offering for sale substantially the same menu items.
- (3) Food item with a high sodium content means any standard menu item offered by a covered establishment that contains per discrete serving unit more than or equal to 2300 milligrams (mg) of sodium, or a combination meal offered by a covered establishment if any combination of food items available to the consumer contains more than or equal to 2300 mg of sodium.
- (4) Food on display means food that is visible to the customer before the customer makes a selection, so long as there is not an ordinary expectation of further preparation by the customer before consumption.
- Menu or menu board means a printed list of the names or images of a food item or items, and the primary writing of a covered establishment from which a customer makes an order selection. Menus include breakfast, lunch, and dinner menus; dessert menus; beverage menus; children's menus; other specialty menus; electronic menus; and menus on the internet, and may be in various forms, including booklets, pamphlets, single sheets of paper, or electronic screens. Determining whether a writing is or is part of the primary writing of a covered establishment depends on a number of factors, including whether the writing lists the name of a standard menu item (or an image depicting the standard menu item) and the price of the standard menu item, and whether the writing can be used by a customer to make an order selection at the time the customer is viewing the writing. Menu boards include menu boards inside the establishment as well as drive-through menu boards outside the establishment.
- (6) Point of purchase means any place where a customer may order food within an establishment.
- (7) Standard menu item means any individual food item or combination of food items listed or displayed on a menu or menu board that is sold by a covered establishment.
- (8) Variable menu item means a standard menu item that comes in different flavors, varieties or combinations and is listed as a single menu item.
- (b) Required warning. A covered establishment that offers for sale any food item with a high sodium content must provide the following warning:
  - (1) An icon must appear on a menu or menu board next to any food item with a high sodium content, or on a tag next to any food on display that is a food item with a high sodium content:



The icon must be a black and white equilateral triangle as wide as it is tall and equal in height to the largest letter in the food item's name, as displayed on the menu, menu board, or tag next to any food on display; and

(2) The following statement must be posted conspicuously at the point of purchase: "Warning:

indicates that the sodium (salt) content of this item is higher than the total daily recommended limit (2300 mg). High sodium intake can increase blood pressure and risk of heart disease and stroke."

- (d) Enforcement. The monetary penalty for a violation of this section is \$200 dollars. Violations may be adjudicated at any tribunal operated by the Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings.
- (e) Effective date. This section takes effect on December 1, 2015.
- (f) Severability. If any provision of this section, or its application to any person or circumstance, is held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions or the application of the section to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected.

Notes: Section 81.49 was added by resolution of the Board of Health adopted at its September 9, 2015 meeting to require that covered food service establishments in New York City display a warning icon on menus if a food item contains 2300 milligrams or more sodium.

**RESOLVED**, that the schedule of section headings in Article 81 of the New York City Health Code, set forth in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, be amended, to be printed together with explanatory notes to read as follows:

#### ARTICLE 81

#### FOOD PREPARATION AND FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS

\* \* \*

**§81.46** Refillable, returnable containers.

§81.49 Sodium warning.

**§81.50** Posting of calorie information.

\* \* \*

Notes: Article 81 was amended by resolution of the Board of Health adopted at its September 9, 2015 meeting adding a new Section 81.49 requiring covered food service establishments to display a sodium warning icon on menus if a food item contains 2300 milligrams or more sodium.

- 1 Zimmerman R, Li W, Lee E, Lasner-Frater L, Van Wye G, Kelley D, Kennedy J, Maduro G, Sun Y. Summary of Vital Statistics, 2013:

  Mortality. New York, NY: New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, Office of Vital Statistics, 2015.
- 2 NYC DOHMH Community Health Survey, 2013
- 3 U.S. Department of Agriculture and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2010. 7th Edition, Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office, December 2010.
- 4 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Trends in the Prevalence of Excess Dietary Sodium Intake – United States 2003-2010. MMWR 2013;62:1021-1025.
- 5 U.S. Department of Agriculture and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2010. 7th Edition, Washington, DC: U.S. Government Printing Office, December 2010.
- 6 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Trends in the Prevalence of Excess Dietary Sodium Intake – United States 2003-2010. MMWR 2013;62:1021-1025.
- 7 Angell SY, Yi S, Eisenhower D, Kerker BD, Curtis CJ, Bartley K, Silver LD, Farley TA. Sodium Intake in a Cross-Sectional, Representative Sample of New York City Adults. American Journal of Public Health. 2014;104(12):2409-16.
- 8 Angell SY, Yi S, Eisenhower D, Kerker BD, Curtis CJ, Bartley K, Silver LD, Farley TA. Sodium Intake in a Cross-Sectional, Representative Sample of New York City Adults. American Journal of Public Health. 2014;104(12):2409-16.
- 9 Rudelt A, French A, Harnack L. Fourteen-year trends in sodium content of menu offerings at eight leading fast-food restaurants in the USA. Public Health Nutrition. 2013;17(8):1682-88.
- 10 Auchincloss AH, Leonberg BL, Glanz K, Bellitz S, Ricchezza A, Jervis A. Nutritional Value of Meals at Full-service Restaurant Chains. J Nutr Educ Behav. 2014;46:75-81.
- 11 Johnson CM, Angell SA, Lederer A, Dumanovsky T, Huang C, Bassett MT, Silver LD. JAMA Internal Medicine. 2010;170(8):732-34.
- 12 Drewnowski A, Rehm CD. Sodium Intakes of US Children and Adults from Foods and Beverages by Location of Origin and by Specific Food Source. Nutritients. 2013;5:1840-55.
- 13 Burton S, Creyer E, Kees J, Huggins K. Attacking the obesity epidemic: The potential health benefits of providing nutrition information in restaurants. American Journal of Public Health. 2006;96:1669–1675.
- 14 Sarmugan R, Worsley A. Current Levels of Salt Knowledge: A Review of the Literature. Nutrients. 2014;6:5534-559.
- 15 Food Labeling; Nutrition Labeling of Standard Menu Items in Restaurants and Similar Retail Food Establishments. Final Rule, 79 (230) Fed Reg 71156-71259. (December 1, 2014) (to be codified 21 CFR pt 11 and 101)

• s16

#### Notice of Adoption of Amendments to Article 81 of the New York City Health Code

In compliance with \$1043(b) of the New York City Charter (the Charter) and pursuant to the authority granted to the Board of Health (the Board) by \$558 of said Charter, a notice of intention to amend Article 81 of the New York City Health Code (the Health Code) was published in the City Record on June 23, 2015, and a public hearing was held on July 24, 2015. Three people testified and four written comments were received, including three from people who testified. In response to comments, a change was made to the effective date of the amendments. At its meeting on September 9, 2015, the Board adopted the following resolution.

#### Statement of Basis and Purpose

#### Statutory Authority

These amendments to the Health Code are promulgated pursuant to Sections 558 and 1043 of the Charter. Sections 558(b) and (c) of the

Charter empower the Board to amend the Health Code and to include in the Health Code all matters to which the authority of the New York City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (the Department) extends. Section 556 of the Charter authorizes the Department to supervise and regulate the City's food supply. Section 1043 grants the Department rule-making authority.

#### Background

The Commissioner of the Department is the "permit issuing official" designated in the State Sanitary Code (10 NYCRR Chapter 1, Subpart 14-1) to enforce provisions of the Sanitary Code applicable to the operation of food service establishments in New York City. In the City, food service establishments are also subject to provisions of the City's Health Code and to Chapter 23 of the Department's rules, found in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York. The Department's Division of Environmental Health enforces the provisions of the State Sanitary Code and the City's Health Code, as well as the Department's rules applicable to such establishments.

In 2006, the Board adopted a Health Code provision requiring certain restaurants to post calorie information in an effort to combat the emerging epidemic of obesity and associated diseases, including, type 2 diabetes. After that provision was found to be unenforceable by a federal court, the Board adopted the current version of Section 81.50 on January 22, 2008. The authority of the Board to require that chain restaurants provide this information to their customers was upheld by the courts (N.Y. State Rest. Ass'n v. N.Y. City Bd. of Health , 556 F.3d 114 (2d Cir. 2009)) and, in 2008, the City became the first jurisdiction in the United States to require chain restaurants to post calorie information on menus and menu boards.

Other jurisdictions around the country soon followed by enacting similar provisions and, in 2010, Congress included language in the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (the ACA) which mandated nationally that chain restaurants post calorie information and have other nutrition information available on premises for their customers. (Pub.L. No. 111-148 §4205 (2010)). The ACA directed the FDA to adopt regulations implementing nutrition labeling for restaurants that include calorie information. Those regulations were published in December, 2014 and will take effect on December 1, 2015. (21 CFR 101.11). Although they will be in effect, the FDA recently announced that it will be issuing additional guidance for covered establishments which will not have to comply with the rules until December 1, 2016. (80 FR 39675). Establishments in the City that are covered by these federal regulations will be required to comply with them.

Although the federal requirements for menu labeling are largely similar to the requirements in the Health Code, there are some differences. Restaurants with 20 or more locations nationally will be subject to the federal regulations, while the current Health Code requirements apply to restaurants with 15 or more locations nationally. For example, restaurants covered by the new federal regulations will have to include a statement on their menus advising patrons about the number of calories that should be consumed daily. These restaurants also will have to advise patrons that additional nutrition information is available on premises for anyone who wishes to see it. The Department can enforce posting requirements in the Health Code that are identical to the federal requirements and will continue to enforce such provisions for all restaurants with 15 or more locations nationally after the federal regulations take effect on December 1, 2015. Where the Health Code currently requires a posting that the federal regulations will not, the Department will be preempted from enforcing the Health Code requirements in restaurants subject to the federal regulations.

Accordingly, the Health Code Section 81.50 is being repealed and reenacted so that its requirements are identical to the federal requirements. In order to allow covered establishments to benefit from the additional time allowed by the FDA for compliance, the effective date of the reenacted Section 81.50 is being made effective on December 1, 2016. Restaurant-like establishments, which are not yet required to provide calorie information, will benefit from the FDA's guidance and this additional time as they plan to come into compliance. Chain restaurants that currently post calorie information will continue to do so pursuant to the current version of Section 81.50. They, however, will not be required to post the additional signs and provide the additional nutrition information required by federal law, and incorporated into the new version of Section 81.50, until December 2016. In response to a comment, the definition of "similar food retail establishment" has been clarified.

"Shall" and "must" denote mandatory requirements and may be used interchangeably in the rules of this Department, unless otherwise specified or unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

New material is underlined.

RESOLVED, that Section 81.50 of Article 81 of the New York City Health Code, found in Title 24 of the Rules of the City of New York, requiring the posting of calorie information, is REPEALED and reenacted, to be printed together with explanatory notes, to read as follows:

#### §81.50 Posting of calorie information.

(a) Definitions. When used in this section the following words and terms have the following meanings:

- (1) Combination meal means a standard menu item that consists of more than one food item. A combination meal may be represented on the menu or menu board in narrative form, numerically, or pictorially. Some combination meals may be a variable menu item where the components may vary and the customer selects which components will be included in the meal. Some combination meals may include a variable menu item as a part of the meal. A combination meal shall not mean a special price offer to a customer to combine standard menu items for which calorie information is already posted on the menu or menu board.
- (2) Covered establishment means a food service establishment or similar retail food establishment that is part of a chain with 15 or more locations nationally doing business under the same name and offering for sale substantially the same menu items, or a food service establishment or similar establishment that is not part of such a chain that voluntarily registers with the United States Food and Drug Administration to be subject to the federal requirements for nutrition labeling of standard menu items pursuant to 21 CFR 101.11(d), or successor regulation.
- (3) Custom order means a food order prepared in a specific manner in response to an individual customer's request, which requires the covered establishment to deviate from its usual preparation of a standard menu item.
- (4) Daily special means a food item prepared and offered for sale on a particular day that is not routinely listed on a menu or menu board, or other offer and that is promoted by the covered establishment as a special item for that day.
- (5) Food on display means restaurant-type food that is visible to the customer before the customer makes a selection, so long as there is not an expectation of further preparation by the customer before consumption.
- (6) Food that is part of a customary market test means food that appears on a menu or menu board for less than 90 consecutive days to test customer acceptance of the food.
- Menu or menu board means a printed list of the names or images of a food item or items and the prices of such items, that is the primary writing of a covered establishment from which a customer makes an order selection. Menus include breakfast, lunch, and dinner menus; dessert menus; beverage menus; children's menus; other specialty menus; electronic menus; and menus on the internet, and may be in various forms, including booklets, pamphlets, single sheets of paper, or electronic screens. Determining whether a writing is or is part of the primary writing of a covered establishment depends on a number of factors, including whether the writing lists the name of a standard menu item (or an image depicting the standard menu item) and the price of the standard menu item, and whether the writing can be used by a customer to make an order selection at the time the customer is viewing the writing. Menu boards include menu boards inside the establishment as well as drive-through menu boards outside the establishment.
- (8) Offering for sale substantially the same menu items means offering for sale a significant proportion of menu items that use the same general recipe and are prepared in substantially the same food components.
- (9) Similar retail food establishment means an establishment such as a convenience store, grocery or supermarket that serves restaurant-type food.
- (10) Restaurant-type food means food that is (i) usually eaten on the premises of or while walking away from a food service establishment, or soon after arriving at another location, or (ii) processed and prepared primarily in a similar retail establishment and offered for sale to customers for either immediate or later consumption in or outside such establishment.
- (11) <u>Self-service food</u> means restaurant-type food that is available at a salad bar, buffet line, cafeteria or similar self-service facility that is served by customers themselves and includes self-service beverages.
- (12) Standard beverage fill means the fixed amount of a beverage that is less than the full volume of the cup holding the beverage per cup size.
- (13) Standard ice fill means the fixed amount of ice in a cup of a beverage per cup size.
- (14) Standard menu item means any individual food item or combination of food items listed or displayed on a menu or menu board that is sold by a covered establishment.

- (15) Temporary menu item means a food item that appears on a menu or menu board for less than a total of 60 consecutive and non-consecutive days during a calendar year.
- (16) Variable menu item means a standard menu item that comes in different flavors, varieties or combinations and is listed as a single menu item.
- b) Scope and applicability. This section applies to standard menuitems offered for sale in covered establishments and does not apply to condiments, daily specials, temporary menuitems, custom orders, foods that are part of a customary market test or temporary menuitems, or to any menu or menu board in a school that is for students in grades 12 or under.
- (c) Posting calorie information.
  - (1) Number of calories. Menus and menu boards must provide the number of calories contained in each standard menu item. Information must be posted for each item as it is usually prepared and offered for sale. For multiple-serving standard menu items, calorie information must be posted either (i) for the standard menu item as listed, or (ii) for a discrete serving unit provided that the total number of discrete serving units contained in such item is also posted.
  - (2) Position, size and color of calorie information. The number of calories must be listed adjacent to the name or price of the associated standard menu item in a type size that is no smaller than the smaller of either the name or price of the standard menu item. Calorie information must appear in a color that is the same or at least as conspicuous as that used to list the name of the associated standard menu item and against the same contrasting background, or a background at least as contrasting, as that against which the name of the associated standard menu item is listed.
  - (3) "Calories" or "Cal" The term "Calories" or "Cal" must appear either adjacent to the number of calories for each menu item or as a heading above a column listing the number of calories for each standard menu item. Such term appearing adjacent to calorie information for a standard menu item must meet the same font requirements as such calorie information. Such term appearing as a heading above a column must be listed in a type size that is no smaller than the smallest type size used to list the name or price of any menu item on that menu or menu board and in the same color, or as conspicuous a color, and against the same contrasting background, or a background at least as contrasting, as that used for that name or price.
  - (4) Basis for calorie information. Posted calorie values must have a reasonable basis, which may be derived from the use of nutrient databases, laboratory testing, or other reliable methods of analysis, and be rounded to the nearest ten (10) calories for calorie content values above 50 calories and to the nearest five (5) calories for calorie values 50 calories and below. Zero calories may be declared for any item containing fewer than five (5) calories.
  - (5) Self-service food and food on display. Calorie information must be declared for self-service food and food on display. The calorie information must be declared either (i) for each food item or, (ii) if the food item is not offered for sale in a discrete unit, per serving measured by a standard scoop or cup size. The declaration must identify the serving or discrete unit used to determine the calorie content. The calorie information must be posted either on a sign adjacent to and clearly associated with the corresponding food, or on a sign attached to a sneeze guard above the food item. The sign must identify the food item for which it is declaring calorie information if it is not otherwise clear to which food item the declaration belongs, or, if calorie information is being declared for more than one food item, on a sign or placard located where the customer can view both the food items listed on the sign and their calorie declarations. For self-service beverages, calorie declarations must be accompanied by the total number of fluid ounces in the cup indicated by the term "fluid ounces" and, if applicable, a description of cup size, e.g., small, medium, etc. as applicable.
  - (6) Different sizes, flavors and varieties; toppings; combinations.
    - (A) Different sizes, flavors and varieties. For standard menu items offered in different flavors and varieties, calories must be posted for each listed size, flavor or variety. If all of the listed sizes, flavors or varieties of a standard menu item have the same calorie amount, menus and menu boards must list a single calorie declaration for the standard menu item. If there are only two calorie amounts for all sizes, flavors and varieties of a standard menu item, both calorie amounts must be posted on menus and menu boards for the menu item with a slash between the two calorie amounts. For sizes, flavors and varieties of a standard menu item having more than two

- calorie amounts, the range of calorie amounts must be posted on menus and menu boards for each such size, flavor and variety.
- Toppings. When toppings can be added to a standard menu (B) item and such toppings are listed on menus and menu boards, the calories for the standard menu item must be listed as well as the calories for each such topping.
- (C) Combinations. When a menu or menu board lists two options for standard menu items in a combination meal, the calories must be declared for each option with a slash between the calorie declarations. If three or more options for standard menu items in a combination meal are listed, the range of calorie content values showing the minimum to maximum numbers of calories for all combinations of that standard menu item shall be listed on menus and menu boards. If there is only one possible total calorie amount for the combination, then that total must be listed on menus and menu boards.
- (7) Beverages that are not self-service. Calories declared for non-self-service beverages must be based on the full-volume of the cup or other container served without ice. If the establishment usually dispenses and offers for sale a standard beverage fill or a standard ice fill, the calories declared must be based on such standard beverage fill or standard ice fill.
- Required nutritional information statements.
  - General requirement. Menu boards and each page of a menu for a covered establishment must prominently state in a clear and conspicuous manner: "2,000 calories a day is used for general nutrition advice, but calorie needs vary
  - Children's menus. Instead of the requirement of subparagraph 1 of this paragraph, menus and menu boards, and pages of menus, targeted for children may state either: "1,200 to 1,400 calories a day is used for general nutrition advice for children ages 4 to 8, but calorie needs vary."; or "1,200 to 1,400 calories a day is used for general nutrition advice for children ages 4 to 8 years and 1,400 to 2,000 calories a day for children ages 9 <u>to 13 years, but calorie needs vary.</u>
- Additional written nutritional information. Covered establishments must have written nutritional information on the premises in the manner provided for in 21 CFR 101.11(b)(2)(ii), or successor regulation. The information must be made available to any customer who requests it. All menus and menu boards must prominently state in a clear and conspicuous manner: "Additional nutritional information available upon request.
- Enforcement. In addition to the Department, the Department of Consumer Affairs may enforce the requirements of this section.
- Severability. If any provision of this section, or its application to any person or circumstance, is held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions or the application of the section to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected.
- Effective date. This section takes effect December 1, 2016.

Notes: Section 81.50 was repealed and reenacted by resolution of the Board of Health adopted at its meeting on September 9, 2015 to be identical to regulations of the US Food and Drug Administration in 21 CFR Part 101.

• s16

#### SPECIAL MATERIALS

#### CONSUMER AFFAIRS

#### ■ NOTICE

The Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) intends to issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for its New York City Annual Tax Season Initiative that will seek to identify free tax preparation providers, particularly those who provide VITA and TCE services, to receive funding from DCA/OFE to increase the number of tax returns prepared for low- and moderate-income New Yorkers. In advance of the release of the RFP, the agency has developed a Concept Paper that outlines the agency's goals and approach.

The Concept Paper will be posted to DCA's website on September 21, 2015: http://www1.nyc.gov/site/dca/about/doing-business-with-dca.page

s15-21

#### HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

■ NOTICE

## REQUEST FOR COMMENT REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATION OF NO HARASSMENT

Notice Date: September 11, 2015

Occupants, Former Occupants, and Other To:

**Interested Parties** 

Property: Application # **Inquiry Period** Address 103 East 29th Street,

August 11, 2012 to Present Manhattan 90/15 August 14, 2012 16 Verona Place. Brooklyn to Present

89/15

**Authority:** SRO, Administrative Code §27-2093

Before the Department of Buildings can issue a permit for the alteration or demolition of a single room occupancy multiple dwelling, the owner must obtain a "Certification of No Harassment" from the Department of Housing Preservation and Development ("HPD") stating that there has not been harassment of the building's lawful occupants during a specified time period. Harassment is conduct by an owner that is intended to cause, or does cause, residents to leave or otherwise surrender any of their legal occupancy rights. It can include, but is not limited to, failure to provide essential services (such as heat, water, gas, or electricity), illegally locking out building residents, starting frivolous lawsuits, and using threats or physical force.

The owner of the building identified above has applied for a Certification of No Harassment. If you have any comments or evidence of harassment at this building, please notify HPD at CONH Unit, 100 Gold Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10038 by letter postmarked not later than 30 days from the date of this notice or by an in-person statement made within the same period. To schedule an appointment for an in-person statement, please call (212) 863-5277 or (212) 863-8211.

#### REQUEST FOR COMMENT REGARDING AN APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATION OF NO HARASSMENT

Notice Date: September 11, 2015

Occupants, Former Occupants, and Other Interested Parties To:

Property: Address **Inquiry Period** Application #

131 Kent Avenue, 88/15 October 4, 2004 Brooklyn to Present 77 Clay Street, 91/15 October 4, 2004 Brooklyn to Present

**Authority:** Greenpoint-Williamsburg Anti-Harassment Area,

Zoning Resolution §§23-013, 93-90

Before the Department of Buildings can issue a permit for the alteration or demolition of a multiple dwelling in certain areas designated in the Zoning Resolution, the owner must obtain a "Certification of No Harassment" from the Department of Housing Preservation and Development ("HPD") stating that there has not been harassment of the building's lawful occupants during a specified time period. Harassment is conduct by an owner that is intended to cause, or does cause, residents to leave or otherwise surrender any of their legal occupancy rights. It can include, but is not limited to, failure to provide essential services (such as heat, water, gas, or electricity), illegally locking out building residents, starting frivolous lawsuits, and using threats or physical force.

The owner of the building identified above has applied for a Certification of No Harassment. If you have any comments or evidence of harassment at this building, please notify HPD at CONH Unit, 100 Gold Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10038 by letter postmarked not later than 30 days from the date of this notice or by an in-person statement made within the same period. To schedule an appointment for an in-person statement, please call (212) 863-5277 or (212) 863-8211.

s11-21

#### MAYOR'S FUND TO ADVANCE NEW YORK CITY

#### ■ NOTICE

The Mayor's Fund to Advance New York City (Mayor's Fund) received funding to support a diversity initiative targeting the not for profit cultural community in New York City. The New York City Department of Cultural Affairs (DCLA) launched the Diversity Initiative in January 2015. The purpose of this major initiative is to promote diversity among the leadership, staffs, and audiences of cultural organizations in New York City. This includes a demographic survey of DCLA's nearly 1,000 grantee organizations that will examine race, ethnicity, gender, disability, age, and other factors.

The Mayor's Fund seeks a consultant to develop strategy and execution programming related to DCLA's Diversity Initiative, as further described in the RFP at on.nyc.gov/DiversityInitiativeRFP. The anticipated term of engagement is October 24, 2015 - December 31, 2016.

The budget for this initiative is \$93,000.

a25-s25

The Mayor's Fund to Advance New York City, with the assistance of the New York City Department of Consumer Affairs Office of Financial Empowerment ("DCA/OFE"), seeks a Collaborative of Consultants to partner with each other in creating a framework and strategy for defining and measurably improving neighborhood-level financial health. This initiative seeks to enable DCA/OFE to identify and harness local formal and informal systems and structures to magnify positive financial health outcomes for neighborhoods, and thereby for low-income New Yorkers, across New York City at an unprecedented scale. The total budget for the Collaborative is \$210,000 over approximately 12 months of engagement. Further details can be found at on.nyc.gov/finhealthrfp .

s2-16

The Mayor's Fund is seeking appropriately qualified Community Based Organizations (CBOs) to establish and operate the Connections to Care (C2C) program. The C2C program is funded primarily though a Healthy Futures grant from the Social Innovation Fund of the Corporation for National and Community Service. In C2C, CBOs partner with clinical mental health providers (MHPs) to integrate evidence-based mental health services (treatment, promotion, and/or prevention) into existing programs that serve at-risk populations. The program's goal is to improve mental health and program-related outcomes for low-income (1) expectant mothers and parents of children 0-4; (2) out of school, out of work young adults ages 16-24; and/or (3) unemployed or underemployed low-income working-age adults ages 18 and over receiving workforce development services. In addition, C2C aims to increase access to and utilization of quality mental health care services in order improve mental health outcomes and CBO programmatic outcomes. Expecting C2C to be a five-year program, the Mayor's Fund anticipates awarding grants to approximately twelve CBOs in New York City. Grant sizes are expected to range between \$100,000 and \$250,000 per year, which are required to be matched 1:1 by non-federal funds (for total annual subgrantee budgets of \$200,000 to \$500,000). For more information, please check this link: on.nyc.gov/cborfp.

s10-o16

BHOODSTNGH

NALTNEE

9 POT.T.

#### **CHANGES IN PERSONNEL**

	ALS III I						
		ш	MANT T	RIGHTS COMMISS	TON		
				RIOD ENDING 08			
			TLE	CIOD DIDING O	5/20/15		
NAME			UM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE
CARROLL	KATHERIN		005	\$95000.0000			08/09/15
		DEPI	OF Y	OUTH & COMM I	DEV SRVS		
		FC	R PER	RIOD ENDING 08	3/28/15		
		TI	TLE				
NAME		N	UM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE
BRIMMER	ANTONIO	D 56	099	\$12.6200	) RESIGNE	D YES	07/24/15
CONNOR	GABRIELL	K 40	561	\$63389.0000	) APPOINT	ED YES	08/16/15
KITCHENS	SIKANDRA	D 12	158	\$50923.0000	) RESIGNE	D YES	07/24/15
POLANCO	NAYIRA	51	402	\$56418.0000	) RESIGNE	D YES	07/30/15
THOMPSON	JENNIFER	E 10	095	\$73000.0000	INCREAS	E YES	08/16/15
THOMPSON	JENNIFER	E 40	562	\$64590.0000	) APPOINT	ED NO	08/16/15
		BOAR	D OF	ELECTION POLI	WORKERS		
		FC	R PER	RIOD ENDING 08	3/28/15		
		TI	TLE				
NAME		N	UM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE
ABADA	EDIRIN	91	OLL	\$1.0000	) APPOINT	ED YES	01/01/15

ABATO ADEMOLA ADU AFROZ AFROZ AGREGADO AGUILAR	ANTHONY J RACHEL BRENDA ADNAN AKHTER GRACE DENISE	9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL 9POLL	\$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000 \$1.0000	APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED	YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES	01/01/15 01/01/15 01/01/15 01/01/15 01/01/15 01/01/15 08/19/15
AGUILAR	DENISE	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	08/19/15
AGUILAR	JONATHAN	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15

#### BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS FOR PERIOD ENDING 08/28/15

				IOD ENDING 08/28	1/15		
			TITLE				
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE
AGUIRRI	JEANNETT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AHMED	ZAHANARA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKHTER	NIPA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKPATA	DANIEL	Ι	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTER	FATEMA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTER	FATIMA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTER	JESMIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTER	LIPA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTER	NASRIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AKTHER	MASUMA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALAM	HOSNEARA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALEXANDER	ERIC		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALEXANDRA	WENDY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALEXIS SR	DICKEN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALI	MILI		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALLEN	ASHLEY	Т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALLEN JR	TIMOTHY	М	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALLI	USMAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALMOFLIHI	YASMEEN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALMONTE	HELEN	P	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALVARADO	GENICE	-	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALVAREZ	FREDDIE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ALVINO	MICHELE	R	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AMARTEY	YVONNE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AMBOOKEN	DENNIS		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANDERSON	CARL	А	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANDERSON	TERRELL	A	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANDREWS	ALBERT		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANDUJAR	YSORA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANGLERO	SAMANTHA	N	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANGRAND	MARIE	J	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANIANWU	KARL	т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANTHONY	DAMON	-	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANTOINE	JADDINE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANTOINE	SHERRY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ANWAR	MARIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
APONTE	ASHLY	Y	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
APONTE	CYNTHIA	-	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARCHIBALD	RAMONA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARDINI	ANDREW		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARIAS	ANDREINA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARIAS	JENNIFER		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARIAS	MARLON		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ARMSTRONG	JOEL	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
		C					
ASIAN	NILOY	s	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ATALLA SAAD	JANET		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ATCHISON	DOMINIQU	C	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ATIQ	ABDULLAH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
ATKINS	TINA	L	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AYALA	CAROL	G	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AYALA	CHRISTIN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15

#### BOARD OF ELECTION POLL WORKERS FOR PERIOD ENDING 08/28/15

		FOR PERIOD ENDING 08/28/15 TITLE					
NAME			NUM	SALARY	ACTION	PROV	EFF DATE
AYALA	SHANIKQU		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
AYALA	THERESA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAEZ JR	TIRSON	Α	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAH	AHMED	Α	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAHR	ANNETTE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAILEY	JEAN	Α	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAILEY	TALICA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BALTODANO	GIULLIAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BANU	AKHTARA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAPTISTA	JONATHAN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BARBOSA	ELIJAH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BARNA	CHRISTOP	F	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BARUA	DEBESH		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BARUA	SHAMPA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BATISTA	SENEY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BATTLE	MARION		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BATTS	LUCILLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BAUGH	PHILIP	Т	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BEASLEY	KEENAN	M	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BECK	ROSA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BEGUM	MEHARUN		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	08/17/15
BEGUM	SHAFIA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BEGUM	SHORIFA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELL	FRANCIS	D	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELL	NICOLE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELL	PAULA		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELL	SHANEE		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELLAMY	RUBY		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BELLO	JOHNNY	E	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BENNETT	SHANTEL		9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BERNARDEZ	SULY	I	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15
BETHEA	RASHEEDA	N	9POLL	\$1.0000	APPOINTED	YES	01/01/15

\$1.0000

APPOINTED

01/01/15

YES